
 

Minutes of Town Meeting 

January 5, 2026

 
President Charles M. Rhodes, Jr. called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Present were 
Commissioners, Margaret L Coursey, John P. Griffin Jr., and Town Administrator Kyle Ambrose. 
 
Commissioner Griffin led those in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Commissioner Griffin moved to accept the minutes of December 15, 2025, as presented. 
Commissioner Coursey seconded the motion.  The motion passed 3-0. 
 
Committee Reports:  
 
Planning and Zoning: Ms. Rochester advised that there will be a Planning and Zoning Meeting on 
Monday, January 12, 2026 at 6pm to develop an Ordinance that the Town is required by the State to 
permit solar arrays. 
 
Board of Appeals: Nothing to report. 
 
Budget Status Report: Each Commissioner received copies of the General and Sewer Accounts and 
reviewed same. 
 
Unfinished Business:  
 
Maryland Food Bank Food Truck: Mr. Ambrose advised that the Food Truck is scheduled to be in 
Church Hill on Wednesday, January 14, 2026, from 12:00 p.m.- 2:00 p.m. at Church Hill Park, 1130 
Sudlersville Road. 
 
QAC Library Book Mobile: Mr. Ambrose advised that the Book Mobile is scheduled to be in Church 
Hill on Thursday, January 15 and 29, 2026, from 2:45 p.m.- 3:45 p.m. at the corner of Main Street and 
Church Lane. 
 
Other: President Rhodes stated that the Town donated $10,000 to the Church Hill Volunteer Fire 
Company and $2,000 to the Ladies Auxiliary at their banquet dinner on January 3, 2026.  
 
Christmas Light Decorating Contest: Commissioner Coursey stated that the winners of the Christmas 
Light Decorating Contest are as follows:  

1. 604 Main Street. – The Thompson Family 
2. 127 Crossgate Drive – The Sturgill Family 
3. 119 Walnut Street – The Cannon Family 

Commissioner Coursey stated that the Town’s atmosphere was astounding this Holiday season with 
as many houses that decorated and participated in this year’s Christmas Lights Contest. 
 
123 Walnut Street: President Rhodes advised that he has been in contact with the Town’s attorney on 
what steps to take regarding the demolition of the house that was involved in a fire at 123 Walnut 



Street. The owner of the aforesaid house had until Friday, January 2, 2026, to contact the Town to 
give the Town consent to remove the structure. The recommendation now from the Town’s attorney is 
to file a court order to obtain a demolition permit so the house can be safely demolished. 
Commissioner Griffin made a motion to get a court order to demolish the house at 123 Walnut Street. 
Commissioner Coursey seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0 unanimously. 
 
New Business:  
 
Correspondence: Mr. Ambrose stated that the Town received mail from Mike Bostic outside of 
Town limits on Brodie Lane. Mr. Ambrose advised that Mr. Bostic’s farm is adjacent to the 
Town’s property, and the Town is required to be notified when development will be taking 
place on the adjacent property. President Rhodes stated that he spoke with the surveyor 
regarding the two homes being built on the adjacent property and had advised that it will only 
be a minor subdivision with two 1.2 acre lots. 
 
Church Hill 150th Birthday Celebration: Commissioner Coursey advised that Mr. Ambrose is 
meeting with the Fireworks Company and QAC Parks and Recreation on Thursday January 8th 
to finalize and hopefully get approval for the proposed fireworks display location at Church Hill 
Park. Commissioner Coursey stated that Wednesday, January 14th there will be a committee 
meeting to start a timeline of the celebration day on June 6, 2026. Commissioner Coursey also 
stated that a “save the date” flyer was made to send out to the residents. The Town will wait 
until they receive approval from QAC Parks and Recreation on the firework display location. 
Commissioner Coursey also advised that Steve Hurlock (Church Hill Fire Company Chief) is 
also aware of the celebration date as well as the firework display that will take place the night 
of June 6, 2026 and agreed to assist. 

Other: President Rhodes advised that Ms. Lindyberg’s reduced work schedule became effective 
January 1, 2026. Ms. Lindyberg will now work 3 days a week as she is still training and transitioning 
Mr. Ambrose in his role as Town Administrator. 

Ms. Jennifer Moore proposed to the Town Commissioners a Structural and Historical documentation 
of the Town’s buildings. This proposal outlines a volunteer town-wide project to document every 
house, building, structure, church, business, school, park, and community asset in Church Hill 
creating an authoritative 2025–2026 record of the Town’s built environment. This effort will aid in 
planning, preservation, grant eligibility, tourism, zoning consistency, and community development 
while honoring Church Hill’s rich historical legacy. Documentation will be preserved in the Town’s 
permanent records and made available to the public and reviewers for grant and planning purposes. 

President Rhodes advised that the Commissioners would share the proposal with the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and Town Planner for review. 

Sewer System:  
 
Flow Reports: Each Commissioner received a copy of the latest flow report from MES and reviewed 
same. 
 
Proposed WWTP Upgrade: President Rhodes stated that the Town expected to have the permit from 
MDE by the end of November to complete the installation of the aerators. However, the permit has 
not been received. President Rhodes stated that the Town will now have to contact MES and have a 
meeting to expedite the process to finish the installation. 
 
Other: None 



 
Comments: Ms. Rochester stated the trash company has been collecting trash regularly but has not 
been respectfully returning trash receptacles back onto the resident’s property and leaving them out 
in the streets at times. 
President Rhodes advised that the Town has contacted Chesapeake Waste regarding the collection 
of trash throughout Church Hill and was advised that there were a lot of new employees on the trash 
trucks during the morning of pickup. The Town will have another conversation with Chesapeake 
Waste during negotiations of the Town’s contract, regarding trash receptacles being left in the street. 
 
Commissioner Griffin moved to adjourn the Town meeting. Commissioner Coursey seconded 
the motion. The motion passed 3-0. The meeting was adjourned at 6:40pm. 
 
The next Town Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 20, 2026, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kyle P. Ambrose, 
Town Administrator 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate record of the open Town Meeting held by the 
Town Commissioners of Church Hill on Monday, January 5, 2026, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
Charles M. Rhodes, Jr. 
President 


